
 
Mission Statement: 
Placentia Library District inspires, opens minds, innovates, and connects our community. 
 
District Goals: 
 Strengthen connections and expand community relationships. 

 
 Provide equitable access. 

 

 Adapt to community needs. 
 

 Cultivate thriving collections of resources. 
 

 Provide and promote relevant library services. 
 

 Maintain fiscal responsibility and integrity. 
 

 Support and empower staff. 
 

 Provide an inviting, pleasant, and safe place to explore. 
 

     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA DESCRIPTIONS:  The Agenda descriptions are intended to give members of the public notice and a 
general summary of items of business to be transacted or discussed.  The Board may take any action which it deems 
to be appropriate on the Agenda and is not limited in any way by the notice of the recommended action. 
 
REPORTS AND DOCUMENTATION:  Reports and documentation relating to Agenda items are on file in the 
Administrative Office and the Reference Department of Placentia Library District, and are available for public 
inspection.  A copy of the Agenda packet will be available for use during the Board Meetings.  Any person having 
any question concerning any Agenda item may call the Library Director at 714-528-1925, Extension 200. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  Library Board President 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 1. Call to Order Library Board President 
 
 2. Roll Call  Recorder 
 
 3. Adoption of Agenda 
 This is the opportunity for Board members to delete items from the Agenda, to continue items, to re-order 

items, and to make additions pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2(b). 
   Presentation: Library Director 
  Recommendation: Adopt by Motion 
 
 

 

AGENDA 
PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
REGULAR DATE MEETING 

 
September 23, 2024 

6:30 p.m. 
Community Meeting Room 

411 E. Chapman Avenue 
Call-in Number: (669) 900-6833 

Meeting ID: 850 1206 7452  
Password: 046086 

ZOOM Link: meetings.placentialibrary.org 
 

 
    

 
 
 





















Agenda Item 11 

Page 11 
 

PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

 
TO:  Library Board of Trustees 

FROM: Carlo Maskarino, Business Manager  

SUBJECT: Fund Balance Report through August 2024 for Placentia Library District Fund 9LX 
with Orange County Treasurer 

DATE:  September 23, 2024 

 

Fiscal Year 2024-2025  Fiscal Year 2023-2024 

7/31/2024 852,276.28  7/31/2023 817,970.90 

8/31/2024 855,407.23  8/31/2023 820,434.59 

9/30/2024   9/30/2023 822,916.52 

10/31/2024   10/31/2023 825,542.53 

11/30/2024   11/30/2023 828,237.08 

12/31/2024   12/31/2023 830,976.37 

1/31/2025   1/31/2024 833,921.08 

2/28/2025   2/28/2024 836,851.01 

3/31/2025   3/31/2024 839,963.27 

4/30/2025   4/30/2024 843,034.60 

5/31/2025   5/31/2024 846,053.98 

6/30/2025   6/30/2024 849,150.81 
     

 



Page 12 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
   
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page intentionally left blank 
 



Agenda Item 12 

Page 13 
 

PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

TO:  Library Board of Trustees 

FROM: Carlo Maskarino, Business Manager 

SUBJECT: Financial Reports through August 2024 for the Placentia Library District Accounts 
on Deposit with the Orange County Treasurer and the Placentia Library District 
General Ledger 

DATE:  September 23, 2024 
 

Summary of Cash and Investments as of August 31, 2024 
 

     

 Cash with Orange County Treasurer Fund 9LX  $           855,407.23  
      
 General Fund Checking – BMO  $           361,792.61  
      
 General Fund Savings – BMO  $        2,682,587.01   
      
 (Impact Fees in Savings – Restricted)  $           901,070.58   
      
 Payroll Checking – Wells Fargo Bank  $           263,107.11   

      
 Total Cash and Investments   $        4,162,893.96  
    

 

I hereby certify that the investments are in compliance with Placentia Library District Policy 3035 – 
Investment of District Funds, as adopted by the Library Board of Trustees, and California Government 
Code Section 53646(b)(1); and that Placentia Library District has the ability to meet its budgeted 
expenditures for the next six (6) months. 

 
______________________________ 

Jeanette Contreras 
Library Director 



 

Page 14 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
      
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page intentionally left blank 
 







Agenda Item 14 

Page 17 
 

 

PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

TO:  Jeanette Contreras, Library Director 
 

FROM:  Yesenia Baltierra, Assistant Library Director  
 

SUBJECT:  Acquisitions Report for August 2024 
 

DATE:    September 23, 2024 
 
MONTHLY STATISTICS 
 

Total Budget  FY 2024-25 % Spent FY 2023-24 % Spent 

Library $342,328 17% $350,620.00  17% 

*Bookmobile $90,000  0% 70,000 0 
*Bookmobile funds from FY23/24 rolled over to FY 24/25 due to a delay in vehicle delivery. 
 
 
 

Collection Expenditures August August FY-T-D FY-T-D FY-T-D 

 2024 2023 2024-25 2023-24 % changed 
Print Materials $3,065 $4,508 $9,375 $10,748 -13% 

Print Serial Subscription $0 $883 $1,468 $2,024 -27% 

Audio Materials $1,605 N/A $2,145 N/A N/A 

Video Materials $352 N/A $915 N/A N/A 

LOTs $1,593 $629 $2,793 $2,823 -1% 

Total Physical Materials $6,616 $6,020 $16,696 $15,595 7% 

Digital eBooks $2,792 $8,111 $6,137 $15,471 -60% 

Digital eAudiobooks $5,974 N/A $11,349 N/A N/A 

Other Digital  $1,757 N/A $3,475 N/A N/A 

Online Learning Platforms $1,575 $10,176 $21,539 $28,144 -23% 

Total Electronic Content $12,099 $18,287 $42,500 $43,615 -3% 

Bookmobile Print Materials $74 N/A $74 N/A N/A 

Bookmobile LOTs $0 N/A $0 N/A N/A 

Total Bookmobile $74 N/A $74 N/A N/A 

Total Collection Expenditures $18,789 $24,307 $59,270 $59,210 0% 
 



Agenda Item 14 

Page 18 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Titles Added August August FY-T-D FY-T-D FY-T-D 

 2024 2023 2024-25 2023-24 % changed 

Print Materials 333 248 451 515 -12% 

Print Serial Subscription 0 1 2 2 0% 

Audio Materials 23 N/A 23 N/A N/A 

Video Materials 6 N/A 6 N/A N/A 

LOTs 0 0 0 0 0% 

Total Physical Materials 362 249 482 517 -7% 

Digital eBooks 1059 4287 2289 8040 -72% 

Digital eAudiobooks 1991 N/A 3938 N/A N/A 

Other Digital  796 N/A 1523 N/A N/A 

Online Learning Platforms 1 2 5 6 -17% 

Total Electronic Content 3847 4289 7755 8046 -4% 

Bookmobile Print Materials 0 N/A 0 N/A N/A 

Bookmobile LOTs 0 N/A 0 N/A N/A 

Total Bookmobile 0 N/A 0 N/A N/A 

Total Titles Added 4,209  4538 8237 8563 -4% 
 



Agenda Item 14 

Page 19 
 

 
All Materials Held August July Month to Month 

 2024 2024 % changed 

Total Library Physical 82,053 81,966 0% 

Total Digital 2,015,513 1,968,978 2% 

Total Bookmobile Physical 0 0 N/A 

Total All Materials 2,097,566 2,050,944 2% 
 
 
 

Library Children's Physical Materials Held August July Month to Month 
 2024 2024 % change 

Children's Fiction 23,313 23,237 0% 

Children's Nonfiction 13,949 13,963 0% 

Children's Spanish 3,212 3,359 -4% 

Children's Audiobook 990 898 10% 

Children's DVD/Video 1,678 1,697 -1% 

Children's LOTs  63 63 0% 

TOTAL Library Children's Physical Material 43,205 43,217 0% 
 
 
 

Library Adult/Teen Physical Materials Held August July Month to Month 

 2024 2024 % change 

Adult Fiction 17,053  16,836  1% 

Adult Nonfiction 12,724  12,762  0% 

Adult Foreign Language 1,302  1,302  0% 

Adult Audiobook 1,327  1,324  0% 

Adult DVD/Video 3,059  3,047  0% 

Adult LOTs  146  147  -1% 

Vinyl Records 184  184  0% 

Video Games 392  412  -5% 

Teen Fiction 2,661  2,735  -3% 

TOTAL Library Adult/Teen Physical Material 38,848  38,749  0% 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item 14 

Page 20 
 

Digital Material Held July June  Month to Month 

 2024 2024 % change 

eBooks 1,125,367   1,070,389  5% 

Digital Audiobooks 264,206   257,179  3% 

Digital Videos 109,800   108,060  2% 

Digital Magazines 4,192   4,186  0% 

Digital Music 465,404   460,958  1% 

Online Learning Platforms 9 11  -18% 
TOTAL  1,968,978   1,900,783 4% 

 
 
 



Agenda Item 15 

Page 21 
 

PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

 

TO:  Library Board of Trustees 

FROM: Carlo Maskarino, Business Manager 

SUBJECT: Service Revenue Activities Report for August 2024 

DATE:  September 23, 2024 

 

Net Revenue Summary for August 2024 
     

      YTD YTD 
  Aug-24 Aug-23 2024-2025 2023-2024 
          
Passport 14,840 11,655 29,500 22,085 
Passport 
Photos 5,940 5,048 11,540 8,948 

Fines & Fees 1,405 1,073 2,861 1,858 
Meeting Room  0 0 0 0 

TOTAL   $     22,185   $     17,776   $     43,901   $     32,891  

 



 

Page 22 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
      
  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page intentionally left blank 
 



Agenda Item 16 

Page 23 
 

PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

 
TO:  Library Board of Trustees 

FROM: Carlo Maskarino, Business Manager 

SUBJECT: Library Impact Fee Report – August 2024 

DATE:  September 23, 2024 
 
Total Monthly Fees 
Collected

YTD YTD

Aug-24 Aug-23 2024-2025 2023-2024
$26,203.50 $27,639.34 $26,203.50 $27,639.34

Developer/Builder Name Project Description Address Sq. Ft Fee Paid to 
Library 

Date 

2024/2025 YTD Total $26,203.50
Beginning Balance (7/01/2024) 874,140.68$      
Ending Balance (08/31/2024) $900,344.18

Development Projects List

 



 

Page 24 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
      
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page intentionally left blank 
 



Agenda Item 17 

Page 25 
 

 

PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

 

TO:  Library Board of Trustees 

FROM: Carlo Maskarino, Business Manager  

SUBJECT: Personnel Report for August 2024   

DATE:   September 23, 2024 

      YTD YTD 
  Aug-24 Aug-23 2024-2025 2023-2024 
          
Separation 0 0 0 0 
Retirement 0 0 0 0 
Appointments 0 0 0 0 
Open Positions 1 3 2 6 
Workers' Compensation 
Leave 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL  1 3 2 6 
 

 
SEPARATION:  
None 
 
RETIREMENT:          
None 
 
APPOINTMENTS: 
None     
  
OPEN POSITIONS:      
Librarian I – Adult FT 
 
WORKERS COMPENSATION LEAVE:    
None 



 

Page 26 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
   
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page intentionally left blank 
 



Agenda Item 18 

Page 27 
 

PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
 

TO:  Library Board of Trustees 

FROM: Carlo Maskarino, Business Manager 

SUBJECT: City of Placentia - Shared Maintenance Costs through August 2024 

DATE:  September 23, 2024 

CITY OF PLACENTIA INVOICES            
PERIOD 

COVERED         
FY 2024-2025 

INVOICE 
DATE 

TURF 
(Merchants) 

GROUNDS 
(SA 

Aquatics) AT&T 
FACILITY 

MAINT TOTAL 

Jul-24 7/22/2024 1,519.81 582.40 0.00 0.00 2,102.21 

Aug-24 * * * * * * 

Sep-24       
Oct-24       

Nov-24       
Dec-24       
Jan-25       
Feb-25       
Mar-25       
Apr-25       

May-25       
Jun-25       

 TOTAL $1,519.81 $582.40 $0.00 $0.00 $2,102.21 

* City Billing Not Received             
PERIOD 

COVERED         
FY 2023-2024 

INVOICE 
DATE 

TURF 
(Merchants) 

GROUNDS 
(SA 

Aquatics) AT&T 
FACILITY 

MAINT TOTAL 

Jul-23 7/25/2023 3,310.12 287.04 20.20 0.00 3,617.36 

Aug-23 8/31/2023 0.00 291.20 0.00 0.00 291.20 

Sep-23 9/26/2023 0.00 291.20 21.06 274.17 586.43 

Oct-23 * * * * * * 

Nov-23 11/6/2023 0.00 900.00 10.26 0.00 910.26 

Dec-23 12/15/2023 0.00 582.40 11.95 760.03 1,354.38 

Jan-24 1/31/2024 321.16 540.80 24.95 0.00 886.91 

Feb-24 * * * * * * 

Mar-24 3/5/2024 11,837.34 0.00 24.43 37.18 11,898.95 

Apr-24 * * * * * * 

May-24 5/16/2024 1,519.81 0.00 24.27 0.00 1,544.08 

Jun-24 6/26/2024 0.00 1,352.00 12.11 0.00 1,364.11 

 TOTAL $16,988.43 $4,244.64 $149.23 $1,071.38 $22,453.68 
 



 

Page 28 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
      
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page intentionally left blank 
 



Agenda Item 19 

Page 29 
 

 PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

 
TO:  Library Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Jeanette Contreras, Library Director  
 
SUBJECT: Administration Report for August 2024 
 
DATE: September 23, 2024 
 
Meetings: 
 

- August 5th, PLFF Board President meeting: Library Director 
 

- August 6th, Huntington Beach Public Library Interview Panel: Library Director 
 

- August 7th, OLE Construction Management Services meeting: Library Director, 
Assistant Library Director, and Business Manager attended a virtual meeting to discuss 
the project’s scope of work, timeline, staffing, pricing, and expectations.  

 
- August 7th, Public Library Director Forum Planning (PLDF) Committee: Library 

Director 
 

- August 8th, Library Board President Meeting: Library Director 
 
- August 8th, Joint Use Committee: Board President, Library Director, Assistant Library 

Director, Executive Assistant  
 

- August 12th, RFP 2024-01 Project Kick-off Meeting: Business Manager meeting with 
Anser Advisory Group to kick-off Loading Dock and Outdoor Library projects. 

 
- August 13th, Santiago Executive Council: Library Director 

 
- August 15th, Public Works Director, Chris Tanio: Library Director 

 
- August 19th, PLFF Budget Meeting: Library Director 

 
- August 21st, Hoopla Budget Review Meeting: Assistant Library Director and Supervisors 

met with a Hoopla representative to review usage and budget for the 2024-2025 fiscal 
year, ensuring that spending remains within a reasonable and sustainable range. 
 

- August 21st, PLDF Committee Meeting: Library Director 
 

- August 21st, Library Directors Networking Meeting: Assistant Library Director 



Agenda Item 19 

Page 30 
 

- August 23rd, LOT 318 Community Event: Library Director 
 
- August 26th, Library Board Meeting: Administration  

 
- August 27th, Staff Meeting: Administration 

 
- August 27th, Arcelia Cleaning Service: Library Director 

 
- August 28th, Meeting with Circulation Supervisor and Volunteer: Library Director 

 
- August 29th, Public Libraries Survey Information Session: Assistant Library Director 

attended the information session to review the data elements that were added, removed, 
or modified for this year's survey. 
 

- August 29th, Library Impact Fee Meeting:  Business Manager attended library impact fee 
meeting with City of Placentia’s Director of Development Services, Joseph Lambert. 

 



Agenda Item 20 

Page 31 
 

PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
TO:   Jeanette Contreras, Library Director 
 
FROM:   Yesenia Baltierra, Assistant Library Director  
 
SUBJECT: Circulation Activity Report for August 2024 
 
DATE:  September 23, 2024 
 
 

Children's Circulation August August FY-T-D FY-T-D FY-T-D 
  2024 2023 2024-25 2023-24 % change 
Children's Fiction Physical 10,336 10,270 21,067 22,098 -5% 
Children's Fiction Digital 1,246 929 2,630 1,848 42% 

Children's Fiction TOTAL 11,582 11,199 23,697 23,946 -1% 
Children's Nonfiction Physical 2,887 2,551 6,071 5,494 11% 

Children's Nonfiction Digital 150 106 266 191 39% 
Children's Non-Fiction TOTAL 3,037 2,657 6,337 5,685 11% 

Children's Magazine Digital 34 14 69 22 214% 
Children's Magazine TOTAL 34 14 69 22 214% 

Children's Audiobook Physical 1,076 693 2,144 1,527 40% 
Children's Audiobook Digital 809 619 1,635 1,221 34% 

Children's Audiobook TOTAL 1,885 1,312 3,779 2,748 38% 
Children's DVD/Video Physical 414 428 787 895 -12% 
Children's DVD/Video Digital 81 68 157 130 21% 

Children's DVD/Video TOTAL 495 496 944 1,025 -8% 
Children's LOTs  37 46 78 88 -11% 
Music Digital 13 26 23 42 -45% 

TOTAL All Children's Physical Content 14,750 13,988 30,147 30,102 0% 
TOTAL All Children's Digital Content 2,333 1,762 4,780 3,454 38% 

TOTAL All Children's Content 17,083 15,750 34,927 33,556 4% 
  



Agenda Item 20 

Page 32 
 

Adult/Teen Circulation August August FY-T-D FY-T-D FY-T-D 
  2024 2023 2024-25 2023-24 % change 
Adult Fiction Physical 2,540 2,740 5,176 5,586 -7% 
Adult Fiction Digital 3,708 2,736 7,586 5,545 37% 

Adult Fiction TOTAL 6,248 5,476 12,762 11,131 15% 

Adult Nonfiction Physical 1,572 1,927 3,161 3,817 -17% 
Adult Nonfiction Digital 1,045 814 2,082 1,596 30% 

Adult Non-Fiction TOTAL 2,617 2,741 2,617 2,741 -5% 
Adult Magazine Digital 625 203 1,322 362 265% 

Adult Magazine TOTAL 625 203 1,322 362 265% 
Adult Audiobook Physical 90 147 164 296 -45% 
Adult Audiobook Digital 7,150 4,369 14,199 8,580 65% 

Adult Audiobook TOTAL 7,240 4,516 14,363 8,876 62% 
Adult DVD/Video Physical 630 592 1,260 1,165 8% 
Adult DVD/Video Digital 599 634 1,177 1,195 -2% 

Adult DVD/Video TOTAL 1,229 1,226 2,437 2,360 3% 
Adult LOTs  116 98 229 217 6% 
State Parks Pass 71 93 142 155 -8% 
Vinyl Records* 111   197     
Video Games 357 439 772 810 -5% 
Music Digital 64 70 133 171 -22% 
Teen Fiction Physical  391 446 789 851 -7% 
Teen Fiction Digital 347 248 739 558 32% 
Teen Fiction Total 738 694 1,528 1,409 8% 
TOTAL All Adult/Teen Physical Content 5,878 6,482 11,890 12,897 -8% 

TOTAL All Adult/Teen Digital Content 13,538 9,074 27,238 18,007 51% 
TOTAL All Adult/Teen Content 19,416 15,556 39,128 30,904 27% 

      
All Circulation August July FY-T-D FY-T-D FY-T-D 

  2024 2023 2024-25 2023-24 % change 
Total Circulation Physical 20,628 20,470 42,037 42,999 -2% 
Total Circulation Digital 15,871 10,836 32,018 21,461 49% 
Total All Circulation 36,499 31,306 74,055 64,460 15% 

Non-English Language Circulation  1,006 732 2,093 1,464 43% 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Agenda Item 20 

Page 33 
 
Online Database Usage August August FY-T-D FY-T-D FY-T-D 
Funded by Placentia Library District 2024 2023 2024-25 2023-24 % change 
ABC Mouse 712 3,053 1,672 4,410 -62% 
Freegal 1,034 1,119 2,219 2,264 -2% 
Novelist Plus 90 14 215 43 400% 
Novelist Select^ 2,276   4,702     
BookFlix 47 40 238 212 12% 
Scholastic Teachables 13 147 73 439 -83% 

TOTAL PLD DATABASE USAGE 4,172 4,497 9,119 7,492 22% 
        

 
Online Database Usage August August FY-T-D FY-T-D FY-T-D 
Funded by California State Library 2024 2023 2024-25 2023-24 % change 
Brainfuse JobNow/VetNow 5 11 10 20 -50% 
Brainfuse HelpNow~ 1 2 1 3 -67% 
Britannica 53 40 67 48 40% 
LinkedIn Learning 255 55 364 81 349% 
ProQuest~ 9 1 9 1 800% 
ProQuest Culture Grams~ 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 
Teaching Books and BookConnections 439 206 729 270 170% 
National Geographic Kids (Gale)~ 0 17 0 19 -100% 
Gale in Context: Environmental 
Studies~ 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 
Gale Interactive: Science~ 0 0 0 11 -100% 
Coursera 4 16 9 35 -74% 
EBSCO LearningExpress Library~ 0 1 6 1 500% 
Northstar~ 2 3 2 3 -33% 
Alexander Street* 2   2     
PebbleGo Science K-2^ 0   2     

TOTAL CSL DATABASE USAGE 770 352 1,201 492 144% 
TOTAL ALL DATABASE USAGE 4,942 4,849 10,320 7,984 29% 

       *New collection for FY 23-24 
       ^New collection for FY 24-25 
       ~Mathematically unable to divide by zero 

 
 



 

Page 34 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
      
  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page intentionally left blank 
 



Agenda Item 21 

Page 35 
    

PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

TO:  Jeanette Contreras, Library Director 
 

FROM:  Yesenia Baltierra, Assistant Library Director  
 

SUBJECT:  Children’s Services Report for August 2024 
    

DATE:  September 23, 2024 
 
 

Number of Programs by Type August August FY-T-D  FY-T-D   FY-T-D  
   2024 2023 2024-25 2023-24  % change  
Storytime  7 11 16 20 -20% 
Children's Programs 12 10 28 22 27% 
Hangar  1 1 1 2 -50% 
Teen Programs  3 3 6 5 20% 
Self Directed CT 3 1 6 4 50% 
Outreach 2 1 4 1 300% 

TOTAL Children/Teen 28 27 59 52 13% 
 

Program Attendance by Type August August FY-T-D  FY-T-D   FY-T-D  
   2024 2023 2024-25 2023-24  % change  
Storytime  317 650 739 1,168 -37% 
Children's Programs 880 773 2,629 1,921 37% 
Hangar  14 450 14 548 -97% 
Teen Programs  24 29 44 55 -20% 
Self Directed 40 22 275 229 20% 
Outreach 25 365 125 365 -52% 

TOTAL Children/Teen 1,350 2,289 3,862 3,738 3% 
 

The Hangar Makerspace   August  August  FY-T-D   FY-T-D   FY-T-D   
  2024  2023  2024-25  2023-24   % change   
Hangar Activity Hour Visits   138 177 295 311 -5% 
Hangar Equipment In-House 
Use 7  11  #DIV/0! 

 
 
 



Agenda Item 21 

Page 36 
 
ACHIEVEMENTS 

• Daisy Badge planned and conducted Lunch at the Library on August 7. 
• Daisy Badge planned and conducted Baby Giggles and Wiggles on August 23. 
• Daisy Badge planned and conducted Family Storytime on August 17 and 31. 
• Mayli Apontti facilitated Read to the Dogs on August 5. 
• Mayli Apontti planned and conducted Baby Giggles and Wiggles on August 16 and 30. 
• Mayli Apontti facilitated Wild Wednesday on August 7 and served as the point of 

contact for the performer. 
• Mayli Apontti facilitated the Summer Reading Program Finale on August 10.  
• Damean Sanz led Morning Meet Ups on August 23. 
• Damean Sanz and Jeanette Contreras conducted outreach at LOT 318 Gomez Center. 
• Damean Sanz planned and conducted Family Storytime on August 24.  
• Alex Aguire planned and conducted Luna Luna Bilingual Storytime on August 14, 21, and 

28.  
• Alex Aguirre facilitated STEAM program with Code Ninjas on August 8. 
• Caitlyn Sandfer planned and coordinated PTAC on August 1 and 15. 
• Caitlyn Sandfer planned and coordinated Teen Anime/Manga Night on August 1. 
• Caitlyn Sandfer and Damean Sanz planned and ran the Movies in the Park Fundraiser 

with teen volunteers on August 9. 
• Joy Ellis led Morning Meet Ups on August 2, 9, 16, 23 and 30. 

 
MEETINGS   
 

• August 1, Margaret Hatanaka and Michelle Meades attended the City/Library meeting 
with representatives from Community Service and the Police Department. Michelle 
presented them with a summary of the success of this year’s Third Grade visits. 
Margaret mentioned the popularity of the Wild Wednesdays and Lunch at the Library 
service and reminded them that the last Wild Wednesday would be August 7, followed 
up by Saturday’s Summer Reading Finale performer inside the library. Community 
Services mentioned that they are planning on bringing the mobile animal clinic back to 
the library parking lot.  

• August 1, Daisy Badge attended the virtual Lunch at the Library Community of Practice 
session where a presentation on the CLA Lunch at the Library Partner Project and 
Annual Outputs Survey reporting guidelines were presented. 

• August 8, Margaret Hatanaka attended the Kiwanis board meeting where their Fall 
outreach (Taste of Placentia, Back to School gift card donation with Lot 318 students, 
Heritage Festival) was discussed. 

• August 14, Daisy Badge met with CLA’s marketing firm Media Cause to participate in an 
in-depth interview regarding feedback and insights about the Lunch at the Library 
program.  

• August 21, Margaret Hatanaka, Michelle Meades and Yesenia Baltierra met with 
Katherine Dunne from Midwest Tapes to discuss Hoopla subscription options. 



Agenda Item 21 

Page 37 
• August 21, Caitlyn Sandfer attended the Teen SLS Meeting at the OC Heritage Park 

Library to discuss teen programming from summer and brainstorm ideas for fall and 
winter teen programs.  

 

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 

• None 



 

Page 38 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
      
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page intentionally left blank 
 



Agenda Item 22 

Page 39 
 

    

PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

TO:  Jeanette Contreras, Library Director 
 

FROM:  Yesenia Baltierra, Assistant Library Director  
 

SUBJECT:  Adult Services Report for August 2024    
 

DATE: September 23, 2024 
 
 
MONTHLY STATISTICS 
 

Number of Programs by Type August August FY-T-D  FY-T-D   FY-T-D  
   2024 2023 2024-25 2023-24  % change  
Adult Programs 1 1 2 3 -33% 
History Room 0 0 0 1 -100% 
Literacy 32 40 58 63 -8% 
General Interest 0 0 0 0 - 
Self-Directed 1 0 3 1 200% 

TOTAL Adult 34 41 63 68 -7% 
 

Program Attendance by Type August August FY-T-D  FY-T-D   FY-T-D  

   2024 2023 2024-25 2023-24  % change  
Adult Programs 12 10 22 20 10% 
History Room 0 0 0 3 -100% 
Literacy 338 328 518 473 10% 
General Interest 0 0 0 0 - 
Self-Directed 16 0 160 54 196% 

TOTAL Adult 366 338 700 550 27% 
 

History Room Activity August  August FY-T-D FY-T-D FY-T-D 
  2024 2023 2024-25 2023-24 % change 
History Room Visitors 0 10 0 17 -100% 
Memory Lab Appointments 0 9 0 17 -1 

 
 
 



Agenda Item 22 

Page 40 
 

Volunteer Hours  August  August  FY-T-D  FY-T-D  FY-T-D  
  2024 2023 2024-25 2023-24  % change  
History Room  0 0 0 0 0 
PLFF  285.5 294 542 486 11% 
General Library  182.50 134.25 382 260 47% 
Adult Literacy  350 202 616 381 62% 
PTAC  19.3 36 29 69 -58% 
Teen Volunteers 166.0 358.5 650 747 -13% 
Total Volunteer Hours   838 666 1569 1195 31% 
FTE Equivalent  4.83 3.84 9.05 6.89 31% 

 
Literacy  FY-T-D  FY-T-D   FY-T-D  
  2024-25  2023-24 % change  
Adult Literacy Students  23 29 -21% 
Adult ESL Students 38 14 171% 
Adult Literacy Tutors 25 29 -14% 
Adult ESL Tutors  36 1 3500% 

 
 
ACHIEVEMENTS 
• Sally Federman coordinated Literacy Reads – Beginner Book Club on August 7, 14, 21, 28.  
• Sally Federman facilitated Literacy Reads – Int. Book Club on August 6, 13, 20, 27.  
• Esther Canedo coordinated Read, Write, Speak Club on August 2, 9, 16, 23.   
• Esther Canedo facilitated ESL Conversation Class at the Whitten Center on August 20, 27. 
• Esther Canedo facilitated ESL Conversation Class at the Whitten Center on August 22, 29.  
• Laurel Dennis facilitated ESL Conversation Class at the Library on August 6, 13, 20, 27. 
• Laurel Dennis coordinated ESL Conversation Thursday morning class at the Library on August 1, 8, 

15, 22, 29.  
• Sally Federman facilitated the Casual Conversation group on August 1, 22.  
• Esther Canedo facilitated a Leamos Class at the Whitten Center on August 20, 27.  
• Sally Federman, Esther Canedo facilitated a Tutor In-Service on August 6. 
• Sally Federman, Esther Canedo facilitated a Learner Discussion on August 7. 
• Esther Canedo, Laurel Dennis facilitated the Backpacks for Success Outreach at the Whitten Center 

on August 14. 
• Tim Balen gave a presentation about eBooks and Online Resources, including 

OverDrive/Libby, Hoopla, Novelist Plus and Novelist Select, at the staff meeting on July 23. 
• Michelle Meades participated in the Alhambra City Library Interviews for a Digital Librarian 

1 position on July 29. 
• Tim Balen designed the Fall 2024 – Spring 2025 eXPLORE newsletter in August. 
• Tim Balen shared the Fall 2024 – Spring 2025 eXPLORE newsletter on the library’s website 

and email newsletter in August. 



Agenda Item 22 

Page 41 
 

• Tim Balen designed library publicity and marketing material for Adult Services, Teen 
Services, Children’s Services, and general library in August. 

• Tim Balen and Public Services staff coordinated the library’s summer Graphic Design Intern 
and Teen Services Intern in August. 

• Tim Balen organized the Summer Reading Program prize instructions and selection of 
winners. 

• Michelle Meades and Margaret Hatanaka conducted substitute librarian interviews on 
August 12. 

 
 
MEETINGS 
• On August 21 Sally Federman attended the CLLS Networking meeting. They announced some digital 

literacy conferences/webinars. Then there was a presentation on Reading Horizons which is an 
online learning platform.  

• On August 22, Sally Federman and Esther Canedo attended the ESL Working Group meeting. The 
meeting was facilitated by Allyson Jeffredo. Programs shared their successes. One of the programs 
shared their intake process while another shared their assessment process and tool (SD Quick 
Reading Level Assessment Tool).  

• On August 6 and 13 Megan Tolman and Tim Balen met with SirsiDynix staff to set up 
Horizon Book List Carousels for Enterprise.  

• On August 26 Megan Tolman and Michelle Meades met with Baker & Taylor to discuss grid 
templates for future First Look Carts.  

• On August 1, Michelle Meades and Margaret Hatanaka attended the City/Library meeting 
where programs that would impact parking were discussed. 

• On August 21, Michelle Meades, Yesenia Baltierra, and Margaret Hatanaka met with 
Katharine Dunne of Hoopla to discuss circulation and prices. 

• On August 29, Michelle Meades met with Debye Payne of Rotary to discuss membership 
requirements. 
 

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
• On August 13, Tim Balen attended the “Welcome to Palace” webinar presented by the 

California State Library about the eBooks for All state program and the Palace Project.  
• On August 28, Tim trained Alex Aguirre on the library’s weekly newsletters on Constant 

Contact and Canva.  
• On August 22, Sally Federman and Ruchika Sharda attended one session of the “IDEAL EdTech 

Innovations: An Open Conference on Digital Education!” It was about designing a digital literacy 
program.  



 

Page 42 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
   
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page intentionally left blank 
 



Agenda Item 23 

Page 43 
 

    

PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

TO:   Jeanette Contreras, Library Director 
 
FROM:  Yesenia Baltierra, Assistant Library Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Technology and Website Report for August 2024 
 
DATE:   September 23, 2024 
 
MONTHLY STATISTICS 
 

Computer and Wi-Fi Usage  August  August  FY-T-D  FY-T-D  FY-T-D  
  2024 2023 2024-25  2023-24  % change  

Children Computer Usage  394 391 740 667 11% 
Children AWE Learning Usage 467 339 975 724 35% 
Teen Computer Usage  161 206 295 382 -23% 
Adult Computer Usage  990 1,164 2,037 2,285 -11% 

Total Computer Usage  2,012 2,100 4,047 4,058 0% 
Wi-Fi Usage  1,535 1,638 2,802 3,275 -14% 
Guest Passes  75 113 168 210 -20% 
Total Print Jobs 1,273 1,094 2,459 2,033 21% 
Total Pages Printed 3,722 3,166 7,031 6,488 8% 

       
Website Traffic  August  August  FY-T-D  FY-T-D  FY-T-D  

  2024 2023 2024-25  2023-24  % change  
Website visits  23,399 14,444 38,193 31,232 22% 
Page Hits  35,632 23,633 63,668 51,109 25% 
Users  18,497 9,521 27,835 20,500 36% 
Pages/Session  1.52 1.52       
Avg. Session Duration  00:01:35 00:01:43       
% New Sessions  96 80       
Placentia Library Online Catalog 
Usage  3,187 4,950 6,375 10,480 -39% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item 23 

Page 44 
 

App Usage August  August  FY-T-D  FY-T-D  FY-T-D  
  2024 2023 2024-25  2022-23  % change  
App Downloads 68   169   

App Launches 1,340   2,859   

Searches 9,914   19,949   

Requests Placed 1,104   1,285   

Renewals Done 2,035   2,490   
Patron Updates 242   316   

App Catalog Usage 75,057   85,347   

 
 
Technology Updates 
Completed Projects: 

• Drafted SOP’s for online web portal form submissions 
• New inhouse and children's catalog pages 

 
Ongoing Projects:   

• E-Rate project implementation 
• Website Updates/ Maintenance 
• Self-Check Machine replacements/ refresh  
• Information Desk PC upgrades 
• SirsiDynix contract extension/renewal 
• Bookmobile Technology Equipment 
• Online library card auto-processing 
• On premise backup solution 

 
Upcoming Projects:  

• ILS RFP research 
• Payment Terminal/ Cash register upgrades 
• Workstation Windows 11 upgrade/replacement  
• Office 2019/2016 End of life 
• Library Public Education Channel 31 on Spectrum Cable 
• Domain migration to ca.gov 

 
 

System Updates: 
 
Updated self-registration processes were not completed, so the new online system has been taken 
offline. The current manual process is still available for patrons. 
Participated in 1 on 1 with Director and Assistant Director to discus ongoing project, priorities, long-
term vision. New projects have been added including on-site backups, windows 11 updates and 
upgrades, domain migration for website and email services, monitor upgrades for remaining old pcs, 
and  
 
Maintenance updates for website, new website, mobile app, staff ipads, servers, user endpoints, and 
payment processing systems.  



Agenda Item 23 

Page 45 
 

 
The IT consultant met with numerous third-party vendors to conduct research and provide input and 
consultation for special projects. These projects included ILS RFP, self-checkout machine upgrades, 
facility security, cash register/ e-commerce service providers, Cyber Security vendors, and others.  



 

Page 46 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
      
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page intentionally left blank 
 



Agenda Item 24 

Page 47 
 

 

PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

TO:   Jeanette Contreras, Library Director 
 
FROM:   Yesenia Baltierra, Assistant Library Director  
 
SUBJECT:  Customer Service Report for August 2024 
 
DATE:                September 23, 2024 
 
 

Attendance  August August FY-T-D FY-T-D FY-T-D  
  2024 2023 2024-25 2023-24 % change  

Number of Days Open  31 30 61 60 3% 
Number of Hours Open  283 285 554 549 1% 
Attendance   24,138 22,426 46,694 40,551 15% 

      
Card Holders  August August FY-T-D FY-T-D FY-T-D  

  2024 2023 2024-25 2023-24 % change  
Active Borrowers  5,094 4,577 11,362 10,460 11% 
Child Card Holders  15,838 14,817 31,575 29,587 7% 
Teen Card Holders  4,717 4,592 9,419 9,175 3% 
Adult Card Holders  49,105 45,809 97,922 91,273 7% 

Total Card Holders  69,660 65,218 138,916 130,035 7% 
New Patron Registration  401 396 797 750 6% 
New Virtual Library Cards  77 106 162 185 -12% 

      
      

Information Desk Activity August August FY-T-D FY-T-D FY-T-D 
  2024 2023 2024-25 2023-24 % change 
Reference Questions -- in person 1,884 1,907 3,987 4,151 -4% 
Reference Questions -- telephone 501 447 1,099 953 15% 
Reference Questions -- email/chat 7 5 8 10 -20% 

Total Reference Questions 2,392 2,359 5,094 5,114 0% 
Assistance in Spanish 64 42 115 115 0% 
Assistance with Passports 518 271 998 605 65% 
Curbside Usage 4 10 5 23 -78% 
Study Room Usage 213 143 439 314 40% 

 
 
       



Agenda Item 24 

Page 48 
 

Passport Activity  August August FY-T-D FY-T-D FY-T-D  
  2024 2023 2024-25 2023-24 % change  

Passports Processed  422 312 841 639 32% 
Consultations Only  45 27 65 52 25% 
Unfilled Appointments Sat-Sun 154 1 306 5 6020% 
No Show Appointments Sat-Sun 27 19 59 33 79% 
Total Photos walk in/application 299 243 581 455 28% 

 
 
 
ACTIVITIES 
 

• Angie processed 335 new books.  
• Yomara mailed 76 billing notices.  
• Meeting room was used by 2 library partners:  PLFF and Kiwanis 
• Meeting room was used by 1 outside renter:  Broadmoor HOA  
• Meeting Room was used 26 times for library related activities/programs.   
• Staff filled 403 requests from the pull list.  
• Staff pulled 139 expired holds from the request shelf.  

 
 
MEETINGS 
 

• None 
 
 
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
 

• None 



Agenda Item 25 

Page 49 

 

 
PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
 
TO:  Library Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Personnel Committee – Trustee Arnold and Trustee Beverage 
 
SUBJECT: Performance Evaluation of Library Director and Consideration of Changes 

to Compensation 
 
DATE: September 23, 2024 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Personnel Committee will report on the performance evaluation of the Library Director. 
 
Over the past fiscal year, the Library Director has demonstrated exceptional leadership and 
innovation, significantly enhancing the District’s services and community impact. Key 
achievements include: 
 
BUDGET 

• Adoption of Resolution 2024-03 – Amendment to 2024-2025 Fiscal Year Budget 
• Adoption of Resolution 2024-02 – Establishing the Appropriations Limitation for the 2024-2025 

Fiscal Year. 
• Awarded the following grants: 

Funding Source Amount Projects 
State Library $ 47,283 

$ 37,524  
$ 22,500 
$ 9,856 
$ 6,476 
$ 5,680 

ESL  
Adult Literacy 
Privacy booth 
3rd grade visits 
Lunch @ the Library 
Zipbooks 

PLFF $   34,301 
$ 3,792 

Programming & Staff Appreciation 
Taylor Swift Program Series 

Federal Communications 
Commission (FCC) 

$ 13,717 
$ 28,723 

Equipment & software for internet 
Bookmobile, workroom & server room 
projects 

Wi-Fly $ 20,000 Hotspots & laptops (LOTs collection) 
Santiago Library System $ 2,762 Kanopy 

• 2023-2024 Fiscal Year Budget Summary (under budget): 
Revenue Analysis:  

Total Revenue Received: $9,604,453 
Revenue by Source: 

Property Tax & Interest: $3,517,848 
Grants: $144,416 
Miscellaneous: $369,465 



Agenda Item 25 

Page 50 

Year-over-Year Comparison: Revenue decreased by 6% from the previous fiscal year. This is 
largely due to state grants, fines and fees, and passports. 

Cash and Investments:   $4,698,581.54 
Impact Fees (Restricted): $   874,140.68 

 
Expenditure Analysis 

Total Expenses:   $3,703,477 
Expenses by Category: 

Salaries & Benefits:  $2,347,558 
Services & Supplies:  $1,218,124 
Fixed Assets & Taxes:  $137,795 

 
• Presented investment portfolio diversification recommendation, providing a higher yield 

investment – an increase of 1.9848% or $52,083 additional funds for the District. The Board 
approved the District moving funds from BMO to the California Cooperative Liquid Assets 
Securities System (CLASS). 

 
GOVERNANCE 

• Authorization of Amendments to Policies: 
o 2012 – Dress Code  
o 2022 – Employee of the Year Benefits 
o 2275 – Social Media Policy 

• Board Development Commitments: 
o CSDA Legislative Days  
o ALA Conference  
o CSDA Annual Conference 

• Joint-Use Committee 
o Develop agenda for the monthly meeting 
o Provided meeting minutes  
o Secured commitment from the City to expedite related permits for the outdoor library 

space and expansion of loading dock 
o Worked with the City Administrator to have a Public Works staff assist with the Outdoor 

Space, Loading Dock & Electric Charging Station proposals 
• Secured authorization for membership reimbursement to Secretary Dahl 

 
PERSONNEL 

• Staff development and training 
o Facilitated professional development opportunities 

 Staff Development Days 
 Conferences – CLA, PLA, CSDA Board Secretary, SMFO, Future Libraries 

 
• Expansion of staff roles and responsibilities 

o Hired one Library Assistant  
o Shifted Bookmobile staff to conduct more community engagement opportunities 
o Promoted Adult Librarian to Adult Services Supervisor 
o Promoted two on-call Library Clerk to 20 Hr. Part-Time Library Clerk 

 
• Diverse & Inclusive Workforce 

o Generation 
 Generation X  27%  



Agenda Item 25 

Page 51 

 Baby Boomers 11% 
 Generation Y 49% 
 Generation Z 13% 

 
o Classification Level 

 Administration    8% 
 Supervisors    8% 
 Librarian  17% 
 Executive Assistant      2% 
 Library Assistant 27% 
 Library Clerk  28% 
 Library Aide    2% 
 Library Page    8% 

 
o Years of Service 

 45 years    3% 
 20-44 years    5% 
 10-19 years  11% 
 5-9 years    5% 
 Less than 5 years 76% 

 
• Employee Recognition Program & Activities 

o Employee of the Year Recognition 
o Monthly birthday acknowledgments 
o Boba for staff 
o Pho lunch for staff 
o Staff Halloween Potluck 
o Holiday Luncheon with Administration Team 
o Administrative Assistant Day Recognition for Executive Assistant 
o Staff showers 
o Retirement Reception for an employee who has been with the District for 47 years 
o Staff Appreciation – Murder Mystery Dinner 

 
STATISTICS (2023 – 2024 Fiscal Year) 

• Collection 
o 3% increase in library collection volume 
o 3% increase in digital collection 

 
• Circulation 

o 54% increase in children’s digital collection 
o 3% in children’s physical collection 
o 66% increase in adult & teen digital collection 
o 20% increase in teen fiction collection 
o 25% increase in California State Library-funded databases 

 
• Programming 

o 34% increase in children’s programs offered 
o 46% increase in Hangar visits 
o 85% increase in the number of literacy programs offered 
o 49% increase in the total number of programs offered 



Agenda Item 25 

Page 52 

o 26% increase in adult program attendance program attendance 
o 275% increase in the number of adult ESL students 
o 344% increase in the number of ESL tutors 

 
• Computer/Wi-Fi/Virtual Services 

o 25% increase in computer usage 
o 5% increase in website visits 
o 46,001 searches using mobile application 
o 997 renewals processed using the mobile application 
o 592 requests submitted using mobile application 

 
• Customer Service 

o 2% increase in library visits 
o 25% increase in new virtual library cards 
o 7% increase in library cardholders 
o 29% increase in study room usage 
o 29% increase in passport assistance 
o 12% increase in in-person reference transactions 

 
• Launched mobile application 

 
• Launched a new website platform that includes a meeting dashboard, agenda reminders, 

transparency dashboard, a clear indication of State compliance, Section 508 compliance, and 
ease-ability. 

 



Agenda Item 26 

Page 53 
 

 

 
PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
 
TO:  Library Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Personnel Committee – Trustee Arnold and Trustee Beverage 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of Benefits for the Library Director  
 
DATE: September 23, 2024 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
At the September 23, 2024 Closed Session, the Library Board of Trustees met to discuss the 
Library Director’s annual performance and benefits.  
  
SB 1436, which took effect on January 1, 2017, requires the governing bodies of local agencies 
to “orally report a summary of a recommendation” on the salaries, salary schedules, or 
compensation paid in the form of fringe benefits of local agency executives before taking a final 
vote on the proposed changes. SB 1436 specifies that the summary of the recommendation must 
be made “during the open meeting in which the final action is to be taken”.   
 
The Personnel Committee will report on benefit recommendations for the Library Director 
whose current benefits include: 
 

Vacation: 176 hours per calendar year  
Retirement benefits:  Same as other full-time employees 
Retiree health benefits for employee and family through Medicare eligibility age and 
thereafter Medicare supplemental benefits 
Auto allowance: $500 / month 
Data plan allowance: $50 / month 
Sick leave and other holidays as provided to other full-time administrative employees 
Health benefits as provided to other full-time employees 
Life and disability insurance benefits 
  

Last year, at the Library Director’s request, the 3% cost of living adjustment awarded to other 
full-time administrative employees of the District in 2023, and which the Library Director was 
otherwise entitled to receive in 2024, was voluntarily forfeited by the Library Director and the 
equivalent amount was instead distributed equally among the other full-time and part-time 
employees of the District.   
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. Approve the recommended benefits as presented, inclusive of input received from the 
Library Board of Trustees; and, 
 

2. Roll Call Vote. 



 

Page 54 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
      
  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page intentionally left blank 
 



Agenda Item 27 

Page 55 
 

 

 
PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
 
TO:  Library Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Jeanette Contreras, Library Director  
 
SUBJECT: Authorize the Business Manager to attend the 2025 Annual California 

Society of Municipal Finance Officers Conference in San Jose, California, 
February 18-21, 2025 

 
DATE: September 23, 2024 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
The California Society of Municipal Finance Officers (CSMFO) Conference is a significant 
annual event that brings together finance professionals, government officials, and industry 
experts from across the state. This report provides an overview of the preparations and key 
details for the upcoming CSMFO Conference. This year’s theme – Educate Connect Empower 
will be held at the San Jose Convention Center. 
 
The primary objectives of the CSMFO Conference include: 

• Professional Development: Providing attendees with valuable insights, knowledge, and 
tools to enhance their skills and competencies in municipal finance. 

• Networking: Facilitating networking opportunities for attendees to connect with peers, 
industry professionals, and potential collaborators. 

• Knowledge Sharing: Fostering the exchange of best practices, innovative ideas, and 
experiences in municipal finance. 

• Policy Discussions: Engaging in discussions on relevant policy issues and their impact on 
municipal finance in California. 

 
Registration for the conference opens in Fall 2024.  
 
Estimated Fiscal Impact: $2,000 from the General Fund 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
1.  Motion to authorize the Business Manager to attend the 2025 Annual California Society of  
     Municipal Finance Officers Conference in San Jose, California, February 18-21, 2025; and 
 
2. Roll call vote. 
   



 

Page 56 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
      
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page intentionally left blank 
 



Agenda Item 28 

Page 57 
  

PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

 
TO:  Library Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Jeanette Contreras, Library Director 
 
SUBJECT: Adoption of Resolution 2024-04: A Resolution of the Board of Trustees of the 

Placentia Library District Endorsing the Candidacy of Trustee Scott Nelson 
to the Position of 3rd Vice President of the Executive Committee of the 
Independent Special Districts of Orange County. 

 
DATE: September 23, 2024 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Independent Special Districts of Orange County (ISDOC) has provided a notice, dated 
August 5, 2024, calling for candidates for the two-year term positions of 3rd Vice President and 
Secretary.   
 
Responsibilities of the positions are as follows:  
 
THIRD VICE PRESIDENT: The Third Vice President chairs the Legislative Committee. Duties 
include providing a legislative update, making legislative position recommendations to the 
Executive Committee, and in the absence of the President, the First Vice President and Second 
Vice President, shall perform all duties of the President.  
 
SECRETARY: The Secretary is responsible for all correspondence and the dissemination of 
information to members. Duties include preparing and distributing agendas and minutes for the 
Executive Committee meeting, and editing and publishing the quarterly newsletter. All official 
correspondence to the members will be approved in advance by the President or President’s 
designee.  
 
Nominations closed on September 13, 2024. The District received an extension. 
 
Trustee Scott Nelson has expressed interest in serving on the Executive Committee of ISDOC.  
 
Attachment A is Resolution 2024-04. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

1.   Adopt Resolution 2024-04: A Resolution of the Board of Trustees of the Placentia 
Library District Endorsing the Candidacy of Trustee Scott Nelson to the Position of 3rd 
Vice President of the Executive Committee of the Independent Special Districts of 
Orange County; and 

2. Roll Call Vote. 



Agenda Item 28 
Attachment A 

Page 58 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-04 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE PLACENTIA 

LIBRARY DISTRICT ENDORSING THE CANDIDACY OF  
TRUSTEE SCOTT NELSON TO THE POSITION OF  

3RD VICE PRESIDENT OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE 
INDEPENDENT SPECIAL DISTRICTS OF ORANGE COUNTY 

 
WHEREAS, the Placentia Library District is an independent library district organized and 
operating according to California law; and  

WHEREAS, Placentia Library District is a member district of the Independent Special 
Districts of Orange County (ISDOC); and  

WHEREAS, ISDOC will formally elect the members of its Executive Committee to serve a 
two-year term (January 1, 2025 to December 31, 2026); and  

WHEREAS, per the ISDOC Bylaws, officials who wish to seek election/appointment as an 
officer of ISDOC must first secure from his/her district an official endorsement of 
candidacy in the form of a board resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT DOES 
HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS:  

Section 1. The Board of Trustees of Placentia Library District endorses the candidacy of 
Trustee Scott Nelson to the position of 3rd Vice President of the Executive Committee of 
the Independent Special Districts of Orange County.  

Section 2. The District Executive Assistant is hereby directed to transmit a certified copy 
of this Resolution to ISDOC at 18700 Ward Street, Fountain Valley, California 92708, 
forthwith.  

ADOPTED, SIGNED, and APPROVED this 23rd day of September 2024 by a roll call vote.  

AYES:  

NOES:    

ABSENT:    

ABSTAIN:    

 

 

 _____________________________________________ 

Gayle Carline, Board President 



Agenda Item 29 

Page 59 
 

 
PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
 
TO:  Library Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Jeanette Contreras, Library Director  
 
SUBJECT: Authorize Fund Request for the 2024 Staff Appreciation and Recognition 
 
DATE: September 23, 2024 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
A survey was sent to staff on May 7, 2024, seeking input for the 2024 Staff Appreciation and 
Recognition venue and activities. The results were: 
 

• Bowling – 46% 
• Library – 36% 
• Mini Golf – 18% 

 
Based on the input received, the 2024 recognition will be held at the Concourse Bowling Center 
in Anaheim on November 1, 2024, from 6:00pm to 9:00pm.  
 
The Library Director requests $4,500 for the function to cover the cost of activities, food, 
beverage, and other related expenses. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
1.  Motion to approve the request for $4,500 to be used for the annual Staff Appreciation and  
     Recognition event; and, 
 
2.  Roll call vote. 
   



 

Page 60 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
   
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page intentionally left blank 
 



Agenda Item 30 

Page 61 
 

 PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

 

TO:  Library Board of Trustees 
 

FROM: Yesenia Baltierra, Assistant Library Director  
 

SUBJECT: Venture Academy Internship Update  
 

DATE: September 23, 2024 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On June 24, 2024, the Board of Trustees approved a partnership between the Placentia Library 
District and Venture Academy to provide a work internship program, with the following 
guidelines: 
 

• A maximum of two interns per school year. 
• Weekly sessions, each lasting one hour. 
• Student tasks include: 

o Cleaning and maintaining books. 
o Organizing board books. 
o Cleaning toys in the Crossroad Corner and Meet Up areas. 
o Sanitizing selected bookshelves. 
 

Jacob, along with his aide Yvonne, began training on July 15th. During this session, Jacob 
cleaned the Morning Meetups toys in the Hangar with great efficiency. Due to his quick work, 
staff provided him with additional toys to clean multiple times within the hour. On July 22, Jacob 
focused on cleaning children’s picture books. He successfully completed cleaning two rows of 
books within the session's allotted time. By assisting him in logging his hours through our 
volunteer system, he would be able to track his progress. During this session, staff also spoke 
with Jacob’s grandmother regarding our volunteer application process. After walking her through 
the application, she expressed her interest in helping Jacob prepare for his internship tasks at 
home. Staff explained the four activities he would be rotating through: cleaning toys, cleaning 
books, wiping shelves, and organizing board books. She was enthusiastic about supporting him 
in developing these skills. School concluded for the summer on July 22nd.  
 
On Monday, September 9th, Jacob officially began his internship for FY 2024-2025. Library 
staff guided Jacob and his aide through signing in to VicNet, provided them with a two-month 
activity schedule, and assigned him to clean the Morning Meetups toys. Jacob quickly recalled 
his prior experience cleaning the toys and began his work right away. Staff checked in mid-
session, noting that everything was going smoothly. At the end of his shift, Jacob signed out of 
VicNet as instructed. He has adapted well to the internship and has proven to be a fast learner in 
the few sessions he has completed. 



Agenda Item 30 

Page 62 
 

 
Jacob and his aide, Yvonne.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
No action needed.  



Agenda Item 30A 

Page 63 
 

 
PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
 
TO:  Library Board of Trustees 
 
THRU: Jeanette Contreras, Library Director 
 
FROM: Carlo Maskarino, Business Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Discuss the General Contracting Services RFP No. 2024-02 Proposals and 

Award Bid to U.S. Builders. 
 
DATE: September 23, 2024 
 

BACKGROUND 

On August 27, 2024, a Request for Proposals (RFP) was issued for general contracting services 
for the loading dock and Outdoor Library Space. The deadline for proposal submissions was 
September 17, 2024 and Administration received two (2) proposals by the deadline. 
 
The scope of the work seeks contractors to perform the following, but not limited to the work 
below: 
 
Outdoor Library Space 
The outdoor library portion of the scope consists of an addition of 6,596 square feet (SF) of 
outdoor library space to the existing library. It includes removal of existing landscape and 
addition of exterior enclosed reading garden space with structural shading and natural shading 
elements. The reading garden space includes digital connectivity, landscaping, automatic 
irrigation system, security walls and furniture. Some additional work includes the following:  
 
Site Clearing and Demolition  

• Saw cut, remove and haul approximately 175 SF of existing asphalt pavement and base 
per the Outdoor Library plans.  

• Remove and dispose of approximately 100 linear footage (LF) of existing concrete curb 
per the Outdoor Library plans.  

• Saw cut, remove and haul approximately 340 SF of existing concrete sidewalk per the 
Outdoor Library plans.  

• Cap and / or remove and dispose of up to 605 LF of existing irrigation as necessary 
within the project area per the Outdoor Library plans.  

• Remove approximately 6,365 SF of existing landscape and vegetation per the Outdoor 
Library plans.  

• Removal and disposal of 2 pine trees per the Outdoor Library plans.  
• Removal of old library book drop. 



Agenda Item 30A 

Page 64 
 
Site Concrete and Paving  

• Construct approximately 445 SF of decorative concrete per the Outdoor Library plans.  
• Construct approximately 1,730 SF of flagstone paving per the Outdoor Library plans. 
• Install approximately 255 SF of 4” concrete sidewalk per the Outdoor Library plans.  
• Construct approximately 335 SF of full depth asphalt per the Outdoor Library plans.  

 
Patio Shade Structure  

• The 54’-0” x 23’-4” shade structure will be furnished by the Placentia Library District.  
• The shade structure will be installed by the Contractor and all footings / foundations 

required to do so.  
 
Acrylic Decorative Panel Fence  

• Construct approximately 225 LF of decorative panel fence / privacy wall per the Outdoor 
Library plans. 

 
Site Furniture  

• The contractor will be required to provide and install several chairs and benches 
throughout the patio per the Outdoor Library Patio plans.  

• The contractor will be required to provide and install outdoor butterfly decor throughout 
the patio per the Outdoor Library Patio plans.  

 
EV Charging Station  

• The contractor will be required to provide and install EV charging stations.  
• The contractor will be required to provide and install new library book drop.  

 
Loading Dock Ramp Expansion  
The Loading Dock portion of the work consists of demolition, disposal, and construction of 
sidewalk, curbs, loading ramp, and handrails inclusive of the following:  
 
Ramp  

• Saw cut, remove and haul approximately 160 SF of asphalt per Loading Dock Ramp 
Expansion plans.  

• Replace approximately 100 SF of asphalt per Loading Dock Ramp Expansion plans.  
• Remove approximately 10 LF of existing steel post, chain link and all related work at 

existing dock and replace per Loading Dock Ramp Expansion plans.  
 
Handrail  

• Furnish and install approximately 48 LF of new handrail on the new ramp per Dock 
Ramp Expansion plans. 

 
Sidewalk  

• Remove approximately 48 LF of existing steel post, chain link and all related work at 
existing sidewalk to dock per Loading Dock Ramp Expansion plans.  

• Construct approximately 48 LF of existing steel post, chain link and all related work at 
existing sidewalk to dock per Loading Dock Ramp Expansion plans. Curbs  



Agenda Item 30A 

Page 65 
• Construct approximately 50 LF of curb and extended sidewalk per Dock Ramp 

Expansion plans 
 
Proposals were evaluated based on the following criteria: 

1. Overall Responsiveness 
2. Relevant Project Experience 
3. Firm/Team Experience 
4. Value of Services 
5. References 

 
After a thorough review, U.S. Builders was determined to be the lowest responsive and 
responsible bidder. Their bid was in full compliance with the RFP and was priced competitively 
at $1,105,421. 
 
The funding for this contract will come from the General Fund, grant from Assemblyman Chen’s 
office, and library impact fees.   
 
Attachment A is the Bid Evaluation Matrix 
 
Attachment B is the Proposal from MLC Constructors, Inc. 
 
Attachment C is the Proposal from U.S. Builders 
 
Attachment D is the Bid Proposal Comparison List 
 
 
RECOMMENDATONS 

1. Award of the contract for general contracting services for the loading dock expansion and 
construction of the outdoor library space to U.S. Builders, with the total contract amount 
of $1,105,421; and, 
 

2. Authorize the Library Director to approve contingencies, and change orders, in the 
amount not to exceed 10% of the project total; and, 

 
3. Authorize recommendations by a roll call vote; and, 

 
4. Roll call vote. 

 















































































Agenda Item 30A 
Attachment D 

Page 104 
 

Bid Proposal Comparison List 
 
General Contractor: MLC Construction 
Proposed Cost:  $1,505,933.00 
Firm Experience:  4+ years 
Services Provided: 

− New Construction 
− Facility Upgrades 
− School Construction 
− Facility Remodel Services 
− Site Work 
− Water Works 

Team: 
Jim McCoy, President 

Jim has a degree in construction management and has been a licensed 
contractor since 1992. Prior to launching MLC Constructors, Inc., he was Vice 
President of a public works contractor for 14 years and a project manager & 
superintendent for 7 years prior. He also, performed school modernization 
projects for local school districts as a general contractor for 9 years. He has spent 
much of his career working in the public works arena specializing in school 
construction and renovation as well as private industrial construction. 

Ernie Castellon, Vice President 
Ernie has been general superintendent of a public works contractor for 15 years 
& senior superintendent for 10 years prior. He has over 35 years experience in the 
field, executing complex public works projects and managing tradesman. He is 
an expert in structural concrete construction and has spent many years working 
on water treatment & wastewater plants, reservoirs, pumping stations and 
pipelines. He has the ability to manage his projects with great cost and quality 
control while providing superior service.  

Tom Luby, Construction Manager 
Tom has been senior project manager of a public works contractor for 6 six years 
and a general contractor & superintendent for 16 years prior. He has an 
enormous amount of experience managing projects between 1 & 2 million and is 
one of the best at his job. He is a great verbal communicator and an expert 
negotiator. 

References: 
Client: Southern California Rail Authority 

Project: Metrolink Operations Center Restroom Refurbishment 
Project Description: Remodel of Metrolink Operations Center Restrooms, Locker 
Room, New Office Conversion 

Client: City of Palm Desert 
Project: Bridge Preventive Maintenance Program 



Agenda Item 30A 
Attachment D 

Page 105 
 

Project Description: Bride Repair include concrete/asphalt removal, Reshaping 
Metal Parts, and Installation of New Metal Bridge Parts, Concrete Patches and 
Expansion 

Client: Fontana United School District 
Project: FUSD Sierra Lakes ES Interim Housing 
Project Description: Earthwork, Asphalt Paving, Concrete Paving, Fences/Gates, 
and Site Utilities 

Client: Mountain View School District 
Project: Secured Entry 
Project Description: New Reception Desk with Interior Storefront, Non-bearing 
Wall Partition, New Single Door Entry, Flooring, Door Hardware Installation 

Client: San Bernardino County 
Project: Heaps Peak Transfer Station Civil and Structural Improvements 
Project Description: Construction of access roads and concrete slab 

Client: City of Palmdale 
Project: Wash Station and Fuel Island Canopy 
Project Description: Construction of Wash Station and Fuel Island Canopy with 
Asphalt and Concrete Improvements and Utility Connections. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item 30A 
Attachment D 

Page 106 
 
General Contractor: U.S. Builders & Consultants 
Proposed Cost:  $1,178,015.00 

Alternate Lighting - $19,740.00 
Firm Experience:  Unknown 
Services Provided: 

− Residential, Commercial, Infrastructure, and Renovations - Construction 
− Project Management, Quality Control, Contract Administration, and Planning & 

Coordination - Consulting 
− Landscaping, Seismic Retrofitting, Storm Water Management, Sub-Contractor 

Coordination - Other Services 
Team: 
Mohamed Almallah, CEO & Engineer 

20 years’ experience in Civil Engineering construction projects related to large 
construction projects in Residential Buildings, Roads and Infrastructure, Liquefied 
Natural Gas (ELNG), shopping malls, High Rise Building, Power Station and 
Technical Support Team in multinational companies. 

References: 
Client: Long Beach Community College District 

Project: Building O-1 - Room 203 Modernization 
Project Description: Wall Demolition, Drywall & Metal Studs Installation, Fire Alarm 
Modifications, Electrical Panel Relocation, Painting 

Client: City of San Bernardino - Public Works Department 
Project: ADA Restroom Renovations at Paul Villasenor Library and Howard Rowe 
Library 
Project Description: Interior Flooring & Painting, Drywall Installation, Electrical, 
Plumbing 

Client: City of Laguna Woods - Public Works Department 
Project: City Hall Refurbishment and Safety Project 
Project Description: Renovation Work, Interior Flooring & Painting, Drywall 
Installation, Electrical, Plumbing, Concrete 

Client: State of California - DMV 
Project: Compton Santa Fe Field Office Accessibility Improvement 
Project Description: Construction of Five New Accessible Parking Spaces, Curb 
Ramp Replacement, Partition Panels, Doors, Grab Bars Installation,  Insulation of 
Drain/Water Pipes, Drinking Fountain Replacement 

Client: Colton Joint Unified School District 
Project: Mary B. Lewis Playground Upgrade Project 
Project Description: Demolition, Site Paving, Grading, Eartwork, Playground 
Structure Installation, Shade Structure Installation, & Playground Flooring 

Client: City of Orange - Public Works Department 
Project: Water Division Bin Storage 
Project Description: Construction of New Bin Storage Structure with Site 
Improvements 



Agenda Item 31 

Page 107 
 

 

 
PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
 
TO:  Library Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Jeanette Contreras, Library Director  
 
SUBJECT: Joint-Use Committee Updates from President Carline 
 
DATE: September 23, 2024 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
President Carline will provide an update on the Joint-Use Committee meeting. 
 
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
 



 

Page 108 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
      
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page intentionally left blank 
 



Agenda Item 32 

Page 109 
 

 

 
PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
 
TO:  Library Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Jeanette Contreras, Library Director  
 
SUBJECT: Roundtable Women’s Club Updates from Secretary Dahl 
 
DATE: September 23, 2024 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
Secretary Dahl will provide an update from the Roundtable Women’s Club. 
 
  
 
  
 
 



Page 110 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
   
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page intentionally left blank 
 



Agenda Item 33 

Page 111 
 
 

 
PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
 
TO:  Library Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Jeanette Contreras, Library Director  
 
SUBJECT: ISDOC & Legislative Updates from Trustee Nelson 
 
DATE: September 23, 2024 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
Trustee Nelson will report on ISDOC meeting and provide legislative updates. 
 
Attachment A is the September 2024 Take Action Brief from CSDA. 
  
 
  
 
  
 
 















 

Page 118 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
      
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page intentionally left blank 
 



Agenda Item 34 

Page 119 
 

 

 
PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
 
TO:  Library Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Jeanette Contreras, Library Director  
 
SUBJECT: LAFCO Updates from Trustee Beverage 
 
DATE: September 23, 2024 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
Trustee Beverage will provide an update on LAFCO activities. 
 
Attachment A is the August 14, 2024 meeting minutes. 
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
 



Agenda Item 13 

Page 120 

 
 
 
 
 

 
    
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page intentionally left blank  


	Item 3 Agenda September 23 2024.pdf
	PLACENTIA LIBRARY DISTRICT
	BOARD OF TRUSTEES

	Binder1.pdf
	Item 14 Acquisitions Board Report 08 2024
	Item 15 Service Revenue August 2024
	Item 16 Library Impact Fee Report August 2024
	Item 17 Personnel August 2024
	Item 18 Shared Costs with City August 2024
	Item 19 Administration Report
	Item 20 Circ Activity Report 8-2024
	Item 21 CS Board Report 8-2024
	Item 22 AS Board Report 8-2024
	Item 23 Technology & Website Report 8 2024
	Item 24 Customer Service  8-2024 
	Item 25 Library Director Annual Performance
	Item 26 Library Director Benefits
	Item 27 CSMFO Conference
	Item 28 Adopt Resolution 2024-04 ISDOC 3rd VP
	Item 28 Attachment A Resolution 2024-04
	Item 29 Staff Appreciation Request
	Item 30 Venture Academy Intern Update

	Item 30A General Contracting RFP 2024-02.pdf
	BACKGROUND


